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 1  P R O C E E D I N G 

 2 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  We will open the

 3 hearing in Docket DT 07-011.  It's really a compl iance

 4 issue growing out of that docket from long ago.  The

 5 docket was long ago.  In 2008, the Commission app roved a

 6 Settlement Agreement that permitted the transfer from

 7 Verizon New England to FairPoint Communications.  And,

 8 relevant to today's proceedings, there were settl ements in

 9 2008 and 2010, in which FairPoint agreed to abide  by

10 certain service quality standards and self-enforc ing

11 penalties if it was not able to meet those standa rds.

12 What we are taking up today and noticed is the re fund of

13 what appears to be approximately $2.6 million, al though

14 there's a dispute about the actual number, in pen alties,

15 either by refund or by an alternative use, that t he

16 penalty amounts be used for certain broadband dep loyment.

17 FairPoint filed a proposal in response

18 to the Commission's order on March 1st.  And, sch eduled

19 the hearing -- we scheduled the hearing for March  15th,

20 which, at FairPoint's request, was rescheduled to  today.  

21 So, let's take appearances please.

22 MR. McHUGH:  Good afternoon, Chairman

23 Ignatius.  Patrick McHugh, the State President fo r

24 FairPoint Communications, as well as Assistant Ge neral
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 1 Counsel of Northern New England.  With me today i s Steven

 2 Freeman.  Steve is the FairPoint's Director of Ne twork

 3 Engineering.  And, if I could just take a moment to

 4 welcome the new members, Commissioner Harrington and

 5 Commissioner Scott, to the Commission, and congra tulate

 6 Chairman Ignatius to the elevation of the Chair.

 7 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

 8 MR. McHUGH:  There may be one

 9 housekeeping matter.

10 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Why

11 don't we take appearances and we'll come back to that

12 after.  

13 MR. McHUGH:  Okay.  Thank you.

14 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Mr. Fossum.

15 MR. FOSSUM:  Yes.  Matthew Fossum, for

16 the Staff of the Public Utilities Commission.  An d, with

17 me at the table here are Kate Bailey and Michael Ladam

18 from the Commission Staff.  I also wanted to say that,

19 consistent with what I understand the Commission' s

20 instructions to be, the phone line was opened up today for

21 others to listen, but not participate.  And, I ju st wanted

22 to mention that for the record.  And, that there is a

23 possibility that there may be some confidential

24 information discussed that those on the phone may  not be
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 1 permitted to listen in on.

 2 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  Is there

 3 anyone on the phone right now?

 4 MR. FOSSUM:  We're not sure.  We've

 5 tested the system, and it seems to be working, bu t we

 6 haven't heard anybody respond to a request to mak e

 7 themselves known.

 8 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Do we know if anyone

 9 was trying to get in?  Is there a way to double c heck by

10 calling them, to make sure they're not having tro uble?

11 MR. FOSSUM:  That I don't know.  As I

12 said, we had somebody call in and say they could hear it.

13 So, we had that at least confirmed.  But, whether  there

14 was anybody else who has joined since that time, we do not

15 know.

16 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

17 MR. FOSSUM:  So, I mean, yes, the

18 response on the telephone from the conference cal ling

19 company was that there was at least two participa nts on

20 the line, but we did not, as I said, receive any

21 confirmation from whoever the participants may be .

22 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, we know that

23 some people have called in on this line, but we'r e not

24 hearing from them now.
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 1 MR. FOSSUM:  Right.  And, I don't know

 2 the reason for that.  It could, in fact, be that one of

 3 the participants is the call-in from this locatio n.  So,

 4 there may only be one participant.  I simply don' t know.

 5 And, as I said, we tested the system, and it seem s that

 6 those listening can hear us.

 7 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, I think, if we

 8 go into a confidential session, we just need to t urn it

 9 off, because it's hard to know if anyone's there or not,

10 and just to avoid inadvertently putting out more than is

11 appropriate.  We'll just have to do it that way.  Thank

12 you.

13 Mr. McHugh, there was another matter you

14 wanted to raise?

15 MS. BAILEY:  Wait.  I heard somebody.  

16 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Ms. Bailey, yes?

17 MS. BAILEY:  I'm sorry.  I think I heard

18 somebody trying to say something on the phone.  I  think

19 the problem may be we can't hear them.

20 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Is there anyone on

21 the phone who can hear my question?  

22 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Comcast is on the

23 phone.

24 MR. McHUGH:  Comcast is on the phone.
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 1 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  So, just

 2 so you're aware, we can hear just the tiniest bit  of

 3 sound.  So, I don't know what's going on with our s.  But,

 4 if you're there to listen, are you able to hear t he

 5 discussion here?  

 6 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  We can.  I can

 7 hear you.

 8 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  We think

 9 you said you "can hear us".  So, that's good.  We 'll

10 proceed.  And, if we get to a confidential sessio n,

11 hopefully, you heard that, we will have to turn o ff the

12 phone line.  Mr. McHugh, what else did you have?

13 MR. McHUGH:  First, a really

14 administrative matter, how would you like to be a ddressed?

15 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  This has been the

16 most controversial issue.

17 MR. McHUGH:  I just thought I'd -- I

18 won't try and fumble through it.  I've asked you,  you tell

19 me, and then I'll do it.

20 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  The main thing I

21 care about is that people not get worried about i t.  So,

22 people have chosen different things, you know, "C hairman",

23 "Madam Chair", whatever.

24 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  "Fearless Leader"?
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 1 MR. McHUGH:  "Your Excellency"?

 2 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Anything that's not

 3 too cumbersome.

 4 MR. McHUGH:  Okay.  Second thing, what I

 5 really was going to stand up and ask is, I though t I heard

 6 you say in sort of the background information in the very

 7 beginning of the hearing that there were "penalty  amounts

 8 in dispute".  And, I wanted to just clarify, at l east from

 9 my perspective, to my knowledge, there is no disp ute.  I

10 mean, I think we at FairPoint and the Commission Staff are

11 on -- are in agreement that the initial penalties  that

12 were subject to my earlier letter were $2,590,418 .  In my

13 submission of March 1, I simply was indicating th at we

14 have provided to the Staff information that relat es to

15 potentially another $233,000 worth of penalties.  So, when

16 I added those numbers together, I came up with 2, 823,751.

17 But that -- I did add a footnote in my proposal t hat says,

18 you know, "The Staff is still working from their end."

19 But I didn't think there was really anything in d ispute,

20 from my perspective.

21 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, I saw all of

22 that.  We hadn't seen any submission about that a dditional

23 $233,000, other than the footnote.  And, didn't k now if --

24 is the amount that's agreed upon for this is the almost
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 1 2.6, or has the Staff reviewed and thinks that th e 2.8 is

 2 a better number to work with?

 3 MR. FOSSUM:  To answer your question at

 4 least partially, as to the initial underlying amo unt, the

 5 approximately 2.5 million, yes, Staff does agree to that

 6 amount.  Of the additional 233,000, Staff is stil l

 7 reviewing that amount, but, initially, it looks t o be

 8 accurate.

 9 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Is there

10 an agreement on how best to proceed this afternoo n?  We

11 don't have prefiled testimony, but the reference in, Mr.

12 McHugh, in your submission said, if there were

13 confidential treatment, you would provide more de tail.

14 MR. McHUGH:  It really depends, I think,

15 what the Commission actually would like.  I tried  to make

16 the proposal as public as possible, so it was ver y

17 transparent.  And, so, I don't have much to add, other

18 than the proposal.  I did bring Mr. Freeman, beca use he

19 can explain what he's been doing, in terms of -- overall,

20 he's been involved in the three Northern New Engl and state

21 broadband build projects, and certainly been invo lved in

22 the New Hampshire project.  So, I can have him pr ovide a

23 little background information, if the Commission would

24 like it, and especially it's likely new to Commis sioners
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 1 Harrington and Scott.  But, you know, other than that, I

 2 think I tried to put everything, you know, that I  was sort

 3 of asking for into the submission.

 4 To the extent the Commission has

 5 questions of me, I don't know if you really want me

 6 sitting up there, but I'm here to answer them.  B ut, so,

 7 for some of the background information, you know,  Mr.

 8 Freeman would be here -- or, is here to testify.  I don't

 9 think he has a lot to say publicly, though.  That 's the

10 issue, in terms of, other than maybe just a broad

11 description of it, we'd be happy to give that in the

12 public session.  But, I think, really anything he  would

13 have to add, other than that, you know, general

14 description would have to be in a confidential se tting.

15 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  We do have

16 questions, and they may -- some of them may deal with

17 non-confidential matters, but probably many of th em deal

18 with confidential matters as well.  I think it wo uld be

19 beneficial having Mr. Freeman testify.  And, to t he extent

20 that there are matters that you're aware of and h e is not,

21 then we -- either through an offer of proof or ho wever we

22 get there, to get as much as we can in the record .  

23 Does Staff have any concern with that?

24 MR. FOSSUM:  No.  Staff does have a few
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 1 questions as well, but we're not certain which am ong them

 2 may result in disclosure of potentially confident ial

 3 information, because we simply don't know what Fa irPoint's

 4 doing.  And, so, to the extent that the informati on could

 5 be identified, that would be helpful.  And, if th at's in a

 6 confidential session, then that's acceptable to u s.

 7 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  I'll

 8 tell you, if it would help, a few categories of t hings

 9 that I know we might want to explore.  And, then,  maybe,

10 to the extent we can cover anything that is not

11 confidential first, would be good.  And, I haven' t seen a

12 motion for confidentiality.  Is there anything th at's been

13 submitted?  And, you can stay seated, if you'd li ke.  It's

14 up to you.

15 MR. McHUGH:  I will sit down for a bit.

16 Yes.  This morning, a Motion for Confidential Tre atment

17 was sent to the service list, and then filed when  I got up

18 here this afternoon, at about 12:30 or 20 or so, 20 of

19 1:00.  

20 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  It hasn't made it to

21 us yet.  So, we'll need to track down the copies,  which

22 may even be at the front desk.  I don't know if a nyone

23 from Staff could run and see.  So, we could take a look.

24 Thank you.
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 1 The categories I think of off the bat,

 2 and Commissioner Scott and Commissioner Harrison may have

 3 some -- Harrison?  Excuse me.  Harrington, may ha ve some

 4 others to think of as well.  But it seems to me, one of

 5 the issues that may not be in dispute is whether the -- I

 6 take it there's no dispute on the amount, other t han

 7 whether to add this additional $233,000.  And, it  doesn't

 8 sound like there's any dispute as to the prior se ttlements

 9 and orders setting up this refund mechanism as a starting

10 point.  It's only whether there's a basis to devi ate from

11 that mechanism, a better use of the funds.  Is th at fair

12 to say?

13 MR. McHUGH:  I think that's fair to say.

14 I do, as I, again, tried to explain a bit in the March 1

15 submission, you know, had issues with applying bi ll

16 credits beginning on April 1.  And, I don't know if you

17 have questions about it.  But, I mean, so -- but,  in terms

18 of the overall mechanism then, no.

19 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Okay.  So, there is

20 a question about timing?

21 MR. McHUGH:  Right.  Correct.

22 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  When to begin, how

23 long to take in doing it, if the bill credit syst em is

24 used.  So, that would be one thing.  And, I don't  know if
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 1 any of that needs to be confidential.

 2 I guess another issue would be details

 3 on how these funds might be used that are part of  the

 4 95 percent deployment level that the prior settle ment

 5 calls for, because your proposal seems to bring t he two

 6 together.  And, I imagine some of that is confide ntial.

 7 Another question would be, do these

 8 funds, if they were put towards broadband deploym ent, do

 9 they result in a greater than 95 percent deployme nt of

10 broadband?  And, if so, how do we know that?  How  do we

11 measure that?  And, what would that percentage be ?

12 There's references to going beyond 95 percent, bu t not

13 much more detail.  So, that may be a confidential  matter.

14 And, there's another whole timing

15 mechanism for just reaching the regular 95 percen t that's

16 already existing, to extend the dates and put in greater

17 incentives to accelerate some of that at the fron t end,

18 and extend out the time at the other end.  And, w hether

19 that -- how is it that those pieces fit with this  penalty

20 issue?  Two separate issues that seem to be kind of

21 brought together into one.  And, whether the ARRA -funded

22 project has also been brought in to be somehow pa rt of

23 this?  

24 MR. McHUGH:  I'm sorry, what project?
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 1 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, the reference

 2 to the fiber loop system that you referred to as a

 3 "government funded" project that's "requiring a l ot of

 4 FairPoint time to make ready work".

 5 MR. McHUGH:  Oh, oh.  Yes.  Yes.

 6 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  How much that

 7 factors into this or not.  Are there other issues  that --

 8 Mr. Harrington, anything else you know that you - -

 9 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Well, I guess I would

10 start out by just basically looking at the reques t.  I

11 would like the Company to provide some type of a legal

12 basis for what they're proposing.  In that we see m to be

13 taking a transfer of penalties that were going to  go in

14 the form of rebates to customers of a regulated u tility,

15 and we're going to be turning that money over to a

16 non-regulated company.  And, I'm just -- I'm not sure what

17 the legal basis is that allows us to do that.  So , I guess

18 that would be a good place to start.

19 And, there's also the SB 48 that's kind

20 of floating around behind all of this, and how th at fits

21 in, if that, indeed, were to pass.  So, I don't k now,

22 again, from a legal perspective, what effect that  would

23 have on any ruling out the Commission on this.  S o, that's

24 if it passes, it would appear to be taking the
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 1 Commission's authority -- 

 2 (Court reporter interruption.) 

 3 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Just dealing with SB

 4 48.  And, it would appear to take a lot of the

 5 Commission's authority away to deal with what's n ow a

 6 regulated utility.  And, I'm just not sure what t hat

 7 leaves us with, whatever we come up with in this docket,

 8 how it affects us.  So, I think that's something that

 9 needs to be anticipated, because I think that bil l is

10 tomorrow in front of the Science & Tech, so...

11 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Commissioner Scott,

12 did you have other issues to raise?  

13 CMSR. SCOTT:  No.  I had finer points

14 within those topics, but no other issues come to mind.

15 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Okay.  So, if that's

16 helpful to try and think about what needs to be, if we

17 manage to get through the public information firs t, not

18 mix-and-match, in-and-out, and address anything w e can

19 publicly, and that may be some overview of what t he

20 Company has already been doing and the issues tha t you

21 don't feel the need for confidential treatment.  And,

22 then, we sort of begin again with the things that  are more

23 sensitive?

24 MR. McHUGH:  I think that's fair enough.
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 1 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

 2 MR. McHUGH:  Let me, in terms of going

 3 down the list, and I tried to make notes for the Chair.

 4 So, if I need to be corrected, please.  But, in t erms of

 5 the deployment levels and the 95 percent requirem ent, what

 6 we were proposing is to use the penalty funds to build

 7 beyond the 95 percent level.  So, I was not askin g that

 8 the funds be used to subsidize the 95 percent bui ld.

 9 In terms of the overall timing, what we

10 got together and discussed, so I had input from m y friends

11 in Engineering at FairPoint, as well as Construct ion.

12 And, we have quite a bit of work to accomplish ov er the

13 coming year, and into 2013.  And, that I think I' d prefer

14 to discuss in more detail in a confidential setti ng.  I

15 used as an example, in the March 1 submission, th e fact

16 that the fiber build being done, you know, with g overnment

17 funds, the UNH project, is, you know, just consum ing a lot

18 of time.  And, we can get into more of the detail s of

19 that.  But that was just an example of several of  the

20 projects that the Company has to work on.  And, s o, from

21 sort of an overall engineering and construction b ased, you

22 know, project management system, what we were pro posing to

23 do is to, you know, (a) get as much done as possi ble in

24 2012, in terms of expanding broadband in New Hamp shire to
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 1 get as close as possible to the 95 percent deadli ne by the

 2 end of year.  And, then bundling everything up to  do a,

 3 you know, at least in our view, sort of a more me asured

 4 and manageable program, because I didn't want to have two

 5 broadband expansion programs going on in 2013.  W e were

 6 asking, you know, that one, and hence, you know, the

 7 request for the extension.  But recognizing that,  you

 8 know, I wouldn't think the Commission would want to just

 9 say "Yes, you can have another year, McHugh.  You  know, so

10 don't worry about doing anything in 2012."  You k now, what

11 I proposed is some mechanism to say "Well, it's s ort of a,

12 you know, sort of a carrot/stick approach, withou t, you

13 know, financial penalties.  But, to say, "If you had a

14 certain percentage in 2012, then we would give yo u the

15 time.  And, if you don't hit this level in 2012, then you

16 don't get any time, and you got to get it done by  March 31

17 of 2013 or you're subject to penalties."  And, th en, you

18 know, in asking for the extension to 2013, we wou ld still

19 have penalties.  The penalty measurement date wou ld just

20 be moved.  So, that's a broad outline of what we were

21 seeking.  And, that's sort of how they came toget her as

22 one.

23 In terms of the legal basis,

24 Commissioner Harrington, I didn't really undertak e a legal
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 1 research project.  Happy to do it, if you want so mething

 2 more formally filed.  But I think the Commission has broad

 3 discretion to amend its orders.  And, the standar d is

 4 fairly broad, as I recall the cases.  And, so, I didn't

 5 think, in terms of -- that I was asking for anyth ing that

 6 the Commission could not do under the current sta tutory

 7 scheme.  

 8 With respect to Senate Bill 48, I mean,

 9 I --

10 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Well, excuse me,

11 before we leave that, maybe I can clarify what I was

12 looking for.  The portion of FairPoint that puts in the

13 broadband or Internet provider is not a regulated  utility,

14 is that correct?

15 MR. McHUGH:  The services are provided

16 through Enhanced Communications of Northern New E ngland.

17 And, let me make sure I get my entity straight.  That it

18 was -- I mean, it's not an incumbent local exchan ge

19 carrier in New Hampshire.  That the funds would b e, you

20 know, used and held in a restricted account, so t hat they

21 could be segregated, and we'd come up with some m echanism.

22 If, really, you know, Senate Bill 48 goes through  goes

23 influence, then we'd come up with some mechanism so that

24 everybody in the State of New Hampshire is comfor table
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 1 knowing that we have the money and that we're spe nding it,

 2 you know, as we said we would.

 3 But I don't think -- I don't envision

 4 any type of intercompany transfer of funds.  Fair Point

 5 holds its cash in some accounts.  I'm not going t o get

 6 into details on the public session.  But it would  -- what

 7 we're doing in Vermont, let me just say as an exa mple, is

 8 the money that the Vermont Public Service Board a pproved

 9 of in this manner.  So, this sort of program that  we put

10 together, we tried in Vermont and Maine; Maine de nied the

11 request, and the Public Service Board of Vermont granted

12 the request.  So, in Vermont, and I forget the ex act

13 amount of money, but it's north of $6 million.  S o, that

14 money will be held in a segregated, restricted ac count,

15 and tracked for purposes of spending it, to make sure we

16 get there.  So, -- 

17 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Well, let me maybe

18 make it a little bit more specific then.  If you put out

19 this broadband cable, who owns the cable or the d elivery

20 mechanism?

21 MR. McHUGH:  It's the ILEC.  It's

22 Northern New England Telephone Operations, LLC.

23 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  So, that's a

24 company that's not regulated by this Commission?  
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 1 MR. McHUGH:  No, it is.  That's the --

 2 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  That's the incumbent.

 3 I lost track.

 4 MR. McHUGH:  Yes, I know.  I apologize.

 5 So, Northern New England Telephone Operations, LL C, the

 6 incumbent local exchange carrier, in Maine and Ne w

 7 Hampshire.  That's the regulated entity.  It woul d be the

 8 ILEC's assets that it would be -- the money would  be used

 9 for.

10 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  So, the ILEC

11 would own the equipment, but the rates are not co ntrolled

12 by the Commission?

13 MR. McHUGH:  That's correct.

14 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  And, I guess

15 what I'm -- maybe I'm getting at this a little ro und

16 about, but I'm trying to figure out, we started w ith

17 customers who apparently did not get adequate ser vice.

18 And, as a result of that, there was penalties imp osed on

19 FairPoint.  And, now, the people that didn't get that

20 adequate service, instead of getting a rebate for  their

21 troubles that they have experienced, you're propo sing to

22 take the money and give it to somebody else, so t hat they

23 can put in more broadband in Coos County.  How do es that

24 help the other counties in the state?
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 1 MR. McHUGH:  Well, we can get into some

 2 details in the confidential setting in terms of C oos

 3 County.  A couple of things I guess I would respo nd in

 4 that regard.  So, certainly, the bulk of the pena lties

 5 were incurred back when FairPoint had Cutover iss ues in

 6 2009.  Since 2009, I don't have the numbers, but,

 7 certainly, we've lost, we, at FairPoint, lost a

 8 significant number of access lines.  So, to the e xtent

 9 that there is that, you know, the customers who w ere

10 adversely affected ought to be getting the money,  I can

11 tell you, we could get, you know, more numbers, i n terms

12 of what access lines we had, say, January 1 of 20 09 versus

13 what we just publicly reported, but we certainly have had

14 customers leave.  So, any customer who has left, they're

15 not going to get the bill credit.  If we do it, y ou know,

16 and, again, the request is also to do, if we have  to, if

17 the Commission, you know, doesn't approve the pro posal,

18 what I would like to do is just do one bill credi t,

19 versus, you know, trying to do bill credits over a

20 roughly, you know, nine to eleven-month period.  And, so,

21 the bill credit would come up to somewhere betwee n, I

22 think, six and seven dollars, is what you're talk ing about

23 per customer.  And, so, I guess, in the end, in t erms of

24 what benefits the state?
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 1 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  I was talking about

 2 the customers.  The person who had to experience that

 3 inadequate service, whenever it was, how do they get any

 4 benefit out of this, unless they happen to be in Coos

 5 County?

 6 MR. McHUGH:  Well, if there's an

 7 economic benefit to the state, in terms of the ab ility to

 8 buy goods and services, then, you know, some of t hose

 9 folks could benefit that way.  If, overall, it's good for

10 the state, then I would say it's good for the cit izens.

11 And, if it's, on the other hand, just more prefer red that

12 somebody get a $6.00 bill credit, then that's wha t we'll

13 do.

14 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  All right.  I think

15 you've answered my question.  Thank you.  But I'm  still

16 looking for that legal basis.  I'm just not sure,  if, I

17 mean, you say that it's going to Northern, whatev er LLC

18 there, I just want to make sure that we have a so lid legal

19 basis for this.  I mean, or are you assuming we c ould

20 transfer the money to somebody else, some other e ntity?

21 Or, does it have to be associated with, this is a

22 FairPoint customer that's not getting their penal ty money

23 back, if you will, so is there any limit on where  that

24 money could be transferred to?  Could it go to so me other
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 1 entity completely outside of FairPoint?  Or, does  it --

 2 can it only go for broadband service?  Or, could it go for

 3 repairs to the telephone system in New Hampshire?   That's

 4 what I'm trying to find out.

 5 MR. McHUGH:  Right.  So, what I think,

 6 you know, the way I would envision it would work,  and the

 7 way, you know, it's -- let me give you an example .  We had

 8 other restricted accounts.  And, so, you know, as  projects

 9 get completed, the data is gathered and compiled,  in terms

10 of what is, you know, whether it's outside invoic es or,

11 you know, internal time and materials, how it's a llocated

12 to the project.  And, then, the money is simply d educted

13 on a monthly basis.  So, you know, let's say --

14 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Excuse me.  I don't

15 mean to interrupt, but that's not really where I was

16 going.

17 MR. McHUGH:  Oh, I'm sorry.

18 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  What I was trying to

19 determine is, maybe you can come back, and you pr obably

20 can't do this off the top of your head, but where , in what

21 rule and what law does -- gives us the authority to take

22 penalty money from customers and give it to anoth er third

23 party, I guess?  That's what I'm trying to find o ut.

24 MR. McHUGH:  I'll provide that.  That's
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 1 fine.  I understand.

 2 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I want to be sure I

 3 know, Mr. Harrington, there is -- when you say a "third

 4 party", it's FairPoint, the utility, instead of r efunding

 5 to its customers, the proposal is that FairPoint,  the

 6 utility, invests in broadband service for its cus tomers?

 7 MR. McHUGH:  Correct.

 8 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Well, a limited

 9 amount of their customers, in a specific geograph ic area

10 of the state.  And, I would also assume to be cor rected,

11 if FairPoint gets this money and invests it in th eir

12 customers in Coos County, that will somehow incre ase

13 profits to FairPoint.  I'm assuming you make mone y off of

14 your broadband service?

15 MR. McHUGH:  You know, I would really

16 question that.  Because, if you think about it, I  mean,

17 the -- so, we haven't had the chance, and I think  I

18 explained, to do all the engineering work, to ide ntify,

19 you know, exactly what customers would be, say, b eyond the

20 95 percent build and, you know, when it would get  there.

21 But what you're talking about is some equipment t hat,

22 initially, yes, would be, you know, the funding f or the

23 equipment, the installation, would be used with t hese

24 penalty funds.  But that doesn't mean that all of  a sudden
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 1 the Company now has some financial windfall.  You  know,

 2 you've got equipment that needs to be maintained,  has to

 3 be replaced and upgraded.  We have service techni cians

 4 that have to drive around, you know, the northern  part of

 5 the country -- or, northern part of the state, wh ich is

 6 quite expansive.  That all takes time, money, and

 7 resources.  And, depending on what the product of ferings

 8 are, you know, take rates, even in not highly den sely

 9 populated areas, you know, there's not a 100 perc ent,

10 like, take rate.  So, you just -- and, I just -- it's not

11 overall a financially, you know, profitable endea vor.  

12 I think it would -- there's some benefit

13 to the Company, don't get me wrong.  I'm not sayi ng this

14 is, you know, of no benefit to the Company at all .  I

15 don't want to convey that impression.  But I also  think

16 that, to the extent anybody in the State of New H ampshire

17 thinks that somehow this is going to provide a fi nancial

18 windfall to FairPoint, because of its expanding c ustomer

19 base and rates they're going to charge you, it's just --

20 it's not going to happen.

21 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Well, it sounds

22 almost as if you're not even sure on the financia ls that

23 this is going to be a break-even point of view.  I mean,

24 what if we approve this $2.8 million, and three y ears from
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 1 now the cost of it, based on the take rate of the

 2 customers and the cost of doing all this driving around in

 3 northern New Hampshire and repairing things, that  you're

 4 constantly losing money.  Have you done a financi al plan

 5 on this and even come up with an estimate on what  you

 6 expect to be the take rate?  What you expect your  costs to

 7 be?  Expect your revenues to be?  Hopefully, it's  going to

 8 come out at least even.

 9 MR. McHUGH:  Well, I think that one of

10 the benefits would be that we can use these funds  in such

11 a manner as it will help the Company secure fundi ng based

12 on the FCC's recent USF reform orders.  So, there 's

13 certain requirements in order to get, and I am no t the FCC

14 expert, so, you know, I would have to -- you woul d have to

15 give me an opportunity to correct the record if I  get it

16 wrong.  But, you know, for some of the Connect Am erica

17 funding, you have to hit speeds of four up and on e down?  

18 MR. FREEMAN:  Yes.

19 MR. McHUGH:  So, four up and one down.

20 And, it's very expensive to do that.  And, I beli eve the

21 FCC is only going to fund that level to the facto r

22 approximately, I think the formula is finished, b ut it's

23 approximately $775, I think, per household.  But this --

24 so, this money could be used to expand broadband the way
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 1 we set it, but then it would lay the foundation t o get to

 2 that four-to-one speed, which might -- might allo w us to

 3 get, you know, more -- better chance of taking th e Connect

 4 America funding.

 5 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  But it still doesn't

 6 sound as if you have a financial plan laid out fo r this,

 7 saying you could get this money and you spend it on

 8 upgrading broadband in Coos County, that two or t hree

 9 years from now, that will at least not show a neg ative

10 cash flow to the Company?

11 MR. McHUGH:  I think that's right.

12 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  You haven't done

13 that?

14 MR. McHUGH:  We haven't done that.   

15 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  That would be

16 something I think we'd like to see, or at least I  would,

17 before we authorize $2.8 million.

18 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Mr. McHugh, you were

19 knocking off some of the things that we've -- I h ad

20 raised, and, in fact, all three of us raised.  I don't

21 think they're -- we're not done with each of thes e issues,

22 as you do.  But, if there's any other comments yo u want to

23 make on any of the items that we raised, we'll le t you go

24 ahead and do that before we -- 
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 1 MR. McHUGH:  No.  And, that's what I was

 2 trying to do.  But I was also just about done loo king at

 3 the list, because I'm thinking, in terms of what I have to

 4 say publicly, I'm close to being done, if not jus t done.

 5 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Okay.  Does the

 6 Staff have any other items they think need to be on the

 7 table as well for today's discussion that we've f orgotten

 8 to mention?  This is a very informal, kind of odd

 9 structure to today's hearing, I understand.

10 MR. FOSSUM:  I don't -- I'm not entirely

11 sure what you mean by "on the table".  But the St aff had

12 viewed this as, I mean, the Commission issued its  order

13 back in February, that allowed for this plan to b e filed

14 and for a hearing on it.  And, in the context of that

15 order, had set out a few concerns that the Commis sion had.

16 It was essentially our intent to ask questions ab out

17 those, those particular concerns, relative to wha t was

18 filed here.  So, to the extent that they appear i n that

19 order, I mean, specifically, they're -- you know,  the

20 scope of the expansion; the accountability of the  95

21 percent, which you've already raised; the time fr ame for

22 the work to be completed, which is in the plan an d has

23 been discussed a little bit; and the obligations of the

24 plan to survive would be enforced, which has been  touched
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 1 upon a little bit so far as well.  

 2 So, to the extent that any of those have

 3 already been raised, no, we don't have any amendm ents to

 4 that, that list.  But we do intend to go through the

 5 Commission's list as it exists.

 6 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Thank

 7 you.  Yes?

 8 MS. MILLER:  Good afternoon.  I wasn't

 9 going to testify, but I thought that I would have  to go on

10 record with a couple of things.  First of all, I' m a

11 resident of Coos County, born and bred, lived the re all my

12 life.  I don't have phone lines, and I do wireles s

13 broadband.  I commend FairPoint for all the deplo yment and

14 the costs and the hassle of driving Coos County.  There's

15 a lot of miles, lots of trees, and not a whole lo t of

16 people.  

17 But I do want to go on record to discuss

18 a real issue with Coos County, which was, in my m ind, more

19 important than broadband, is the lack of a redund ant loop

20 being turned up through Pinkham Notch.  And, just  to go

21 further into that and explain why I bring that up , on

22 February 17th of this year, we had a major outage .  A

23 tractor-trailer truck took out FairPoint's fiber between

24 Lancaster, New Hampshire, and Jefferson, and it r esulted
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 1 in seven hours of no service.  Which was wonderfu l for me,

 2 because there was no e-mail or a cellphone or any

 3 communication, like the old days, but it did pres ent some

 4 problems for emergency management at the Androsco ggin

 5 Valley Hospital and the Gorham Emergency Manageme nt

 6 Services.  There was a critical patient transfer that

 7 needed to take place, and the protocol required a  call to

 8 Dartmouth-Hitchcock, which could not take place.  The

 9 hospital could not make an outgoing call.  The EM S

10 Director in Gorham drove 30 miles to the

11 Jefferson/Lancaster line, saw what was going on a nd was

12 able to make the call then.  He had to apply for a waiver,

13 because the protocol calls for the actual doctor in the

14 hospital to communicate with Dartmouth-Hitchcock before

15 they accept that transfer.  So, that protocol was  waived

16 due to the lack of communications.

17 So, I just simply say that, if the

18 redundant path or rerouting of traffic is not tur ned out

19 between Gorham and Jackson, bringing broadband in  will

20 make no difference, because we're still going to be

21 susceptible to the loss of service, because of th e layout

22 of the telecom infrastructure in the North Countr y, being

23 basically a stub at this point.

24 So, I just wanted to go on record.  I
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 1 know that FairPoint has addressed it, and there a re plans

 2 to rectify that.  But it's been four years since fiber and

 3 conduit has been put in the ground through the Na tional

 4 Forest.  And, I think the order got lost somewher e or,

 5 through the transition, really didn't make it to the top

 6 of the list of items to be completed.  So, I just  wanted

 7 to go on record for Coos County and saying that i s a major

 8 issue that needs to be rectified.

 9 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Ms. Miller, can you

10 give your full name and title, all for the record  please.

11 MS. MILLER:  Oh, sorry.  For the record,

12 my name is Carol Miller.  I'm the Director of Bro adband

13 Technologies for the Department of Resource and E conomic

14 Development, in Concord.

15 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  And, did

16 you -- are you stating support or opposition to

17 FairPoint's proposal or just further issues that are of

18 importance to the North Country?

19 MS. MILLER:  I'm neither supporting nor

20 opposing.  But I am stating that there is work to  be done,

21 and we'll leave it at that.

22 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Thank

23 you.  Is there information that Mr. Freeman can g ive in

24 the public record that we should next take up, an d then
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 1 move to matters that are confidential?

 2 MR. McHUGH:  One minute?

 3 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Please, take your

 4 time.

 5 (Atty. McHugh conferring with Mr. 

 6 Freeman.) 

 7 MR. McHUGH:  If it pleases the Chair, I

 8 think what we can do is have Mr. Freeman provide just a

 9 very basic overview of the Broadband Expansion Pr ogram.  I

10 think that there's some things he can say publicl y, but it

11 would be limited.  But we're happy to do that.  A nd, if

12 there's maybe public questions that folks have, w e can get

13 those out of the way.

14 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Before

15 -- you could get settled, if you want, Mr. Freema n.  But,

16 I think, Commissioner Scott, you had a question f irst to,

17 probably, just to Mr. McHugh?

18 CMSR. SCOTT:  Yes.

19 MR. McHUGH:  Sure.

20 CMSR. SCOTT:  Again, I'm trying to do

21 the stuff that won't go confidential while we're on the

22 public session here.  I'll give you a little bit of

23 background.  Usually, with -- you know, what we'r e talking

24 about in your proposal, obviously, is penalties, as you
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 1 discussed with Commissioner Harrington.  At least  from my

 2 experience, from when the state looks at penaltie s,

 3 there's usually not a benefit to the entity being

 4 penalized, which you kind of talked to a little b it

 5 already with Commissioner Harrington, to the exte nt that

 6 it seemed unclear, you know, it seemed unclear ho w much of

 7 a benefit, but, certainly, you would have the lin es and

 8 the customer base, to some extent, would be there .  So, if

 9 you could talk a little bit more about that.  I g uess what

10 I'm trying to get at, my end state here is the pe nalties

11 are roughly $2.8 million.  One venue would have i t go

12 right back to the ratepayers, which, in theory, w ould have

13 no benefit directly to the Company.  If we're to do your

14 proposal instead, which would have some benefit, why would

15 that penalty or the amount going into that projec t still

16 be $2.8 million?  Meaning, usually, if Company X is

17 penalized for some activity, if there's some bene fit that

18 goes on as a project, there's usually an adder, i f you

19 will.  That says, "Okay, you get some benefit.  S o,

20 instead of 2.8, it would be some other larger amo unt to

21 take that into account."  Does that make sense?

22 MR. McHUGH:  It does.  I think I

23 understand what you're asking.  But, first, let m e say, I

24 don't know that there is zero benefit to the Comp any of
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 1 rebating this money to the customers.  I think, c ertainly,

 2 customers, in the end, who don't, say, follow wha t goes on

 3 in the telecom industry, they see a $6.00 bill cr edit and

 4 they're going to see a line item that says some t ype of

 5 service quality, you know, rebate.  You know, I t hink they

 6 will appreciate it.  So, I don't know -- so that it's

 7 certainly an intangible benefit.  And, you know, maybe not

 8 one nearly as good as, you know, allowing us to u se the

 9 money to expand the network and provide broadband  services

10 to residents who won't have it.  But the likeliho od is

11 that, if we don't use the money, this 2.8 million , for

12 broadband expansion, we won't go to the other are as,

13 because I don't see it's an economically feasible  endeavor

14 to do it.

15 So, I guess the question comes down to,

16 does the Commission see, assuming, you know, cert ainly,

17 that Commissioner Harrington's concerns about the  legality

18 of it are addressed, in the end, is it beneficial  to the

19 state to have broadband expanded to some of the f olks who

20 otherwise aren't going to get it, other than mayb e, I

21 guess, if they have some type of access to a

22 satellite-based service.  Which every customer I' ve spoken

23 to that has satellite-based service, they don't t hink very

24 highly of it.  So, I guess I'll leave it at that for now.
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 1 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Okay.

 2 CMSR. SCOTT:  Okay.  So, let me ask it a

 3 different way, I guess.  Given that there's some kind of

 4 tangible benefit to doing this with penalty money , is

 5 there an amount beyond 2.8 million the Company wo uld be

 6 willing -- would there be an amount beyond the $2 .8

 7 million penalty, if the Company were -- if the Co mmission

 8 said "yes, go ahead and do this project", what I' m

 9 struggling with is, the 2.8 is supposed to be a p enalty

10 alone, not something the Company would benefit fr om.  So,

11 if the Company were putting in more than 2.8 towa rds that,

12 that would give me a little more assurance that - -

13 MR. McHUGH:  Oh.  So, you're saying, you

14 know, if you approve the 2.8, is there some facto r above

15 the 2.8 that the Company would be willing to inve st in, in

16 the broadband?

17 CMSR. SCOTT:  Yes.

18 MR. McHUGH:  I'd have to take that back

19 and ask.  Because, I mean, we didn't discuss that

20 internally, the management of the Company.  So, I  can't

21 tell you "yes" or "no", right now.

22 CMSR. SCOTT:  That would be helpful for

23 me to make a decision anyways.

24 MR. McHUGH:  Sure.
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 1 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, just to make

 2 sure I understand this, I'll make up numbers.  Th e choice

 3 might be "refund 2.8 million" or "invest 3.8 mill ion", or

 4 whatever number it might be?  That's what you're getting

 5 at?

 6 CMSR. SCOTT:  Right.

 7 MR. McHUGH:  That's what you're asking.

 8 That's what I understood.  

 9 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Right.

10 CMSR. SCOTT:  And, again, that would

11 help me in the mind of, it's supposed -- the 2.8 is

12 supposed to be a penalty alone, not something of benefit

13 to the Company.  So, how do we make those two wor k

14 together?  And, I have one more question?

15 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Please.  Go ahead.

16 CMSR. SCOTT:  And, Mr. McHugh, you also

17 reference in your discussion with Commissioner Ha rrington

18 with -- you had a brief discussion regarding Sena te Bill

19 48, and I understand that's not passed yet, so th ere's

20 some uncertainty there.  I guess I'd -- and, you mentioned

21 there would have to be some kind of language made  up

22 moving forward.  But I'd be looking towards some kind of

23 assurance that, if you were to do this type of pr oject,

24 what would happen if it wasn't done on time?  Wha t happens

     {DT 07-011} [REDACTED - for PUBLIC use] {03-19 -12}



    38

 1 if it wasn't done at all?  That type -- you know,  what are

 2 the ramifications?  And, how would we work that?  I'd be

 3 looking for some kind of language that, again, ma kes me

 4 feel a little bit more comfortable.

 5 MR. McHUGH:  Yes.  That certainly would

 6 have to -- that would have to be worked out.  I m ean, the

 7 proposal certainly would be that the bottom line is, if we

 8 didn't use the money to build broadband, it goes back to

 9 the customers as a refund.  So, there's no -- no

10 alternative proposal from our end.  It's either w e use it

11 as we say we use it, you know, say we use it over  and

12 above the 95 percent, or it goes back to customer s.  I got

13 no issues with that.  So, it's a matter of maybe

14 documenting it, so you're assured that it gets do ne.  But

15 that's what would happen.

16 CMSR. SCOTT:  Okay.  Thank you.

17 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  If

18 nothing else, perhaps you can walk Mr. Freeman th rough

19 some public information about the status of broad band

20 expansion and how he can help enlighten us on the  proposal

21 that you're making.

22 MR. McHUGH:  Sure.  And, maybe just --

23 I'll just, so everybody has a little background o n him,

24 I'll ask him to provide some information on his h istory
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 1 with the Company, things like that.

 2 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Before

 3 you begin, Mr. Patnaude.

 4 (Whereupon Steven Freeman was duly sworn 

 5 by the Court Reporter.) 

 6 STEVEN FREEMAN, SWORN 

 7  DIRECT EXAMINATION 

 8 BY MR. McHUGH: 

 9 Q. Could you state for the record your full name, Mr.

10 Freeman.

11 A. Steven Freeman.

12 Q. And, what's your title at FairPoint?

13 A. Director of Network Engineering.

14 Q. Okay.  And, how long have you been with FairPoi nt?

15 A. Twelve years with FairPoint, and Verizon subseq uently.

16 Q. Okay.

17 A. Previously.

18 Q. Right.  So, in terms of the work you've been do ing,

19 just provide some background information.  What d id you

20 do at Verizon?  What did you do -- and, what are your

21 responsibilities at present here at FairPoint?

22 A. Sure.  I've been in engineering my whole career .  As

23 far as with FairPoint, I've always been in charge  of

24 the broadband projects throughout the three North ern
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 1 New England states.  I also currently have

 2 responsibilities for all outside plant engineerin g.

 3 All the outside plant tariff engineers across the  three

 4 Northern New England states, also indoor plant, a s well

 5 as my broadband implementation responsibilities.

 6 Q. And, what are your responsibilities for the bro adband

 7 implementation?

 8 A. In charge of scheduling the turn-up of all the sites,

 9 as well as ensuring all the reporting is done cor rectly

10 to the various regulatory bodies.

11 Q. And, when you say "turning up the sites", what do you

12 mean by that?

13 A. The network turn-up.  The connection into the n etwork,

14 as well as make -- ensuring that all of our syste ms are

15 updated with the appropriate information to allow

16 customers to call in for service from all these n ewly

17 equipped sites.

18 Q. And, can you give a general overview of the New

19 Hampshire Broadband Expansion Project, being mind ful

20 that we're not in a confidential session?

21 A. Well, in order to increase our broadband covera ge to

22 meet our merger commitments, we have to equip rem ote

23 terminals, as well as central offices, with the

24 equipment that is able to provide high-speed Inte rnet
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 1 service to our customers.  This would include run ning

 2 fiber, fiber cable to our remote terminal sites, as

 3 well as installing any equipment, new or -- at ei ther

 4 new remote terminal sites or existing remote term inal

 5 sites.  So, we plan, engineer, and build all the

 6 facilities necessary to provide high-speed Intern et

 7 service to our -- to customers.

 8 I can go into the -- from a planning,

 9 so, for where we stand now, we are -- the normal flow

10 goes from planning, to engineering, to constructi on.

11 And, we don't complete all the planning before we  move

12 into engineering, before we move into constructio n.

13 It's not a sequential type activity.  These activ ities

14 are going on concurrently.  So, we are -- we've b een in

15 the planning phase for this part of the New Hamps hire

16 Broadband Program for the better part of eight mo nths

17 now.  Engineering is fully underway.  And, we've

18 actually started construction in various sites ac ross

19 the State of New Hampshire.

20 MR. McHUGH:  I wouldn't have anything

21 else for a public question and answer session.

22 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Does

23 Staff have questions?

24 MR. FOSSUM:  We do.  I'll try to -- I
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 1 guess I'll try to look through them and see which  ones

 2 would sort of result in answers that would be mor e likely

 3 to be public.  And, to the extent they would not be, I'll

 4 accept the Company's representation and stop that  line of

 5 questioning.

 6 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

 7 BY MR. FOSSUM: 

 8 Q. Now, Mr. Freeman, you're familiar with the plan  that

 9 was submitted on March 1st, is that correct?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. You've at least reviewed it and you're familiar  with

12 the terms?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. So, just to get it on the record, and, though, Mr.

15 McHugh has already, I think, said this, this plan

16 doesn't define or describe the physical or geogra phic

17 scope of an expansion plan, does it?

18 A. No, it does not.

19 Q. The plan also notes that, on the second page, I

20 believe, it says that some plans -- "engineering and

21 construction [are]...subject to constant change."   Just

22 generally speaking, does that change make it -- o r,

23 that potential for change make it very difficult to

24 define a scope of expansion?
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 1 A. At this point in time, it does, because we're n ot

 2 complete with the full 95 percent planning and

 3 engineering.  So, as I said, the general flow goe s from

 4 planning to engineering to construction.  Plannin g

 5 defines the site list, based on their records, th eir

 6 knowledge of the area.  They move the plans over to

 7 engineering, where we actually go out in the fiel d, do

 8 site visits, look at the physical condition of th e

 9 plant, obtain various right-of-ways, if necessary , if

10 we're placing a new site, and then it moves over to

11 construction.  If we find that there are any issu es

12 during the engineering that would increase the co st of

13 the various site that we're going to equip, or th e

14 field conditions have changed, we will go back to

15 planning and negotiate -- not necessarily "negoti ate",

16 but we will determine whether or not that site sh ould

17 actually stay on the current list.  So, that will  go --

18 there will be some back-and-forth on "this site i s on

19 the list" versus "off the list", which -- how man y

20 sites do we have to pull in from unequipped, from  the

21 unequipped list, to make up for the numbers from that

22 site that was previously planned.

23 So, without all the engineering being

24 complete or a good portion of it being complete, it's
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 1 hard to say exactly where you're going to go in t he

 2 future.  You have to actually get to that 95 perc ent

 3 threshold, know which sites you're going to build , and

 4 then figure out your next set of sites that you'r e

 5 going to build.  Which is why there's nothing spe cific

 6 as part of the $2.8 million plan.

 7 Q. And, keeping all that in mind, do you have an e stimate

 8 of when something like a final plan or a final sc ope

 9 could be defined?

10 A. I would say, certainly, during the second half of this

11 year.  I don't have a certain date.  I would have  to

12 say late third quarter, early fourth quarter.

13 Q. Now, the plan mentions "target communities".  I s there

14 a -- without necessarily disclosing who might be on it,

15 or just whether there is one or not, is there a

16 preliminary list of "target communities" that the

17 Company may be looking at for their -- for this

18 expansion?

19 A. Well, Coos County was sort of the target.  Was there

20 anything specific?  There wasn't anything specifi c

21 we're looking at right now.

22 Q. Okay.  Trying to figure out how to phrase it so  that

23 it's appropriate for this session.  To the extent  that

24 you know, is it the intent of this plan to reach
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 1 customers who would not otherwise be served at al l?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. And, to that end, is it your understanding that  the

 4 plan would attempt to avoid over-building, where there

 5 might be an existing broadband provider?

 6 MR. McHUGH:  I would simply say, on

 7 behalf of the Company, in response to the questio n, we'd

 8 be willing to work with the Staff in that regard,  if that

 9 were the preference.  I mean, it's something that  wouldn't

10 come up until the end of the year, until the engi neering

11 was more refined.  So, we'd be willing to work wi th them

12 in that regard.  And, to be fair to the question,  that's

13 not indicated in my proposal or in the proposal s ubmitted

14 March 1.

15 MR. FOSSUM:  Agreed.  

16 MR. McHUGH:  Yes. 

17 MR. FOSSUM:  That's why I'm trying to,

18 as I said, you know, that in the Commission order  it had

19 discussed the scope.  So, I'm trying to determine  the

20 scope that we're talking about.

21 BY MR. FOSSUM: 

22 Q. I think I have just one other one for public se ssion.

23 Getting back to the issue of "target communities" , and

24 the plan mentions, and you had just repeated a mo ment
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 1 ago, Coos County.  So, does that mean that, to th e

 2 extent some other community might be identified

 3 elsewhere, it is not your intention to, as part o f this

 4 plan, to build to that community?

 5 MR. McHUGH:  I don't understand the

 6 question, I'm sorry.

 7 BY MR. FOSSUM: 

 8 Q. To the extent that -- I'll try to rephrase.  Th e plan

 9 mentions building in Coos County.  So, if there i s a

10 community that might not otherwise be served in s ome

11 other county, is it your understanding that, purs uant

12 to this plan, you would not revise the plan to re ach

13 that community?

14 A. So, I'm not -- I guess I'm not quite understand ing the

15 question.

16 Q. Well, I could --

17 A. The way that we're -- maybe this will help.  Wh en we're

18 designing this 95 percent plan, it's not taking i nto

19 account necessarily this potential plan.  So, we' re --

20 we're looking at the sites.  We're trying to buil d out

21 to the best sites that we can now.  This would be  above

22 and beyond those sites.  This plan would not excl ude

23 other communities that we're currently targeting.

24 Q. I guess that's what I'm trying to -- So, for ex ample,
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 1 say a community in Strafford County appeared to b e one

 2 that could be reached by extension of the network , that

 3 community would not be part of this plan, but may  be

 4 part of your 95 percent plan otherwise?

 5 A. Correct.

 6 MR. FOSSUM:  I think that's all I have

 7 for the moment on the public side.

 8 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Commissioner

 9 Harrington.

10 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Yes.  

11 BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

12 Q. Just to clarify maybe, just want to make sure I 'm clear

13 on this.  Your plan for going beyond the 95 perce nt

14 that you would use the $2.8 million to finance, w ould

15 you be competing with any existing broadband supp liers

16 in the implementation of that plan, except for

17 satellite?

18 A. That wasn't -- I believe what Pat said, that's not

19 something that was written in the order, but it's

20 certainly something we could consider, we could w ork

21 with the Staff to do.

22 Q. I'm not sure what that means.

23 MR. McHUGH:  Well, we didn't address it

24 in the plan one way or the other, Commissioner Ha rrington.
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 1 So that, because he couldn't get down to the engi neering

 2 phase, and won't for some time, that's a question  that we

 3 simply can't answer at this time.

 4 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  But you can

 5 see my concern.  There's an existing company out there,

 6 your competitor.  They wouldn't be getting money from

 7 their ratepayers to subsidize their thing because  of

 8 penalties.  That's my issue.

 9 BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

10 Q. Do you have an estimate now?  So far, what I've  heard

11 is it's going to be areas that were not anticipat ed to

12 be reached under the existing 95 percent goal.  T his

13 would be some new territories beyond that.  And, how

14 many customers do you estimate that you'll connec t with

15 this $2.8 million?

16 A. I can't give you an estimate at this time, just  because

17 we haven't narrowed down the sites enough to dete rmine

18 which ones we're going to, which determines the n umber

19 of customers we'll be able to reach.

20 Q. And, I'm assuming that these would be the fairl y rural

21 areas of Coos County, and not like Berlin, for ex ample,

22 because I'm assuming that that would be covered u nder

23 the 95 percent?

24 A. It's reasonable to assume that it will be the m ore
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 1 rural areas.

 2 Q. What's your estimated, I don't know what the co rrect

 3 term is there, but hook-up rate?  I mean, you go by 20

 4 houses -- I'll make it easy, you go by 10 houses,  how

 5 many, or businesses, how many do you expect them to

 6 subscribe to the service?  What percentage?

 7 MR. McHUGH:  Commissioner Harrington,

 8 that, to me, would be confidential information.

 9 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  Well, I'll

10 wait then.  That was all I had, basically.  Thank s.  

11 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Commissioner Scott.

12 CMSR. SCOTT:  Real quick.  

13 BY CMSR. SCOTT: 

14 Q. I was just wondering, obviously, there's got to  be a

15 lot of factors that go into how you determine whe re you

16 go.  Do you give deference to business customers over

17 residential or you just take it all into account?

18 A. It's usually all, everything is taken into acco unt.

19 CMSR. SCOTT:  And.  Madam Chair, I did

20 have a question for Mr. McHugh, before we go to t he

21 confidential session also, but I can wait.

22 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Hold the

23 thought.  Thank you.  

24 BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: 
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 1 Q. Mr. Freeman, is there any kind of a ballpark es timate

 2 you can give for an amount of money should transl ate

 3 into roughly a certain number of miles covered or

 4 connections made?  You know, for every million do llars

 5 spent, you can expect somewhere in the range of X

 6 number of miles?

 7 A. I really can't, just because it varies site to site.

 8 If you have a rural site that has fiber already t here,

 9 available to it, you can get to that site for a

10 relatively reasonable dollar figure.  But, if you  have

11 a remote that's several miles from any existing f iber,

12 it's going to cost a significant amount of money to

13 cover a relatively few number of households, or

14 businesses.

15 Q. How -- go ahead.

16 A. Uh-huh.

17 Q. How then do we evaluate the impact of going to a

18 broadband investment plan, if we don't know if th e use

19 of this money results in 25. -- I mean, 95.1 perc ent

20 deployment or 98 percent deployment?  Those are v ery

21 different results, in my mind, and in some of the

22 fairness questions that Commissioner Harrington a sked

23 earlier.  Is there any way to get a sense of what  the

24 level of coverage might be, if this plan were app roved?
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 1 MR. McHUGH:  I can answer that, Chair.

 2 I think, because we can't provide you with the in formation

 3 that you need at this time for that, the way I en vision

 4 this essentially would work is that, you know, we  would

 5 essentially hold the money in the restricted acco unt, as I

 6 had mentioned, and then work with the Staff, over  the

 7 course of this year, to come up with what the pro gram

 8 would be.  And, you know, so, your question, thou gh, made

 9 me think of something else.  So, I think the next  step

10 would be to say that, if, really, it looked like,  you

11 know, you would get from 95 percent coverage to, say,

12 95.1 percent, that the money probably ought to go  back in

13 the form of refunds to customers, because it's --  the

14 thought that there is some meaningful economic be nefit to

15 the state really wouldn't bear in out, in terms o f the

16 facts.  

17 But that, if it was some acceptable

18 percentage, and I don't have any ideas as to what  it might

19 be, or what -- certainly, I'm not going to sit he re and,

20 you know, ask you at this point in time what woul d you

21 think is acceptable, but, basically, come up with  a way to

22 say that, "okay, this looks like what we can do."   The

23 Staff would file, you know, essentially a memoran dum with

24 the Commission saying "we recommend", you know, I  mean,
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 1 lay it out a little bit more, you know, "here's w hat we

 2 think we can get accomplished with the 2.8, or Fa irPoint

 3 thinks it can get accomplished with the $2.8 mill ion.

 4 And, we, the Staff, don't think it provides a ben efit to

 5 the state, so the money should go back to custome rs."  Or,

 6 "We think it, you know, it's a worthwhile program , and we

 7 recommend the Commission, you know, give final ap proval

 8 and authorize FairPoint to build."  

 9 And, it's not going to get done until

10 sometime in 2013, in any event.  So, we would hav e some

11 work, you know, to get back to you this year.

12 So, I mean, the way I envisioned it, in

13 light of the fact of what, you know, Mr. Freeman was

14 explaining, that we can't give you these details,  I was

15 not expecting, quite frankly, some type of final order

16 that would pop up in the next, you know, whatever  it is, a

17 couple a weeks or whatever, the Commission can is sue an

18 order saying "yes, it's approved", because there' s just

19 too much work that needs to get done.  

20 So, you know, essentially the way it

21 would, you know, if it doesn't pass sort of the

22 preliminary threshold of "is it worthwhile?"  The n, I'm

23 just expecting an order that says -- whether it's  legally,

24 you know, permissible or just, even if it is, and  it's not
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 1 worthwhile in the Commission's view, then I would  just get

 2 an order that says "give the money back to custom ers."  In

 3 which case, you know, one of the reasons we are h ere today

 4 is also to say, you know, let us just do it in on e bill

 5 credit, or maybe two, from a cash flow perspectiv e.  

 6 But -- or, in the alternative is to get

 7 an order out that says "Well, you know, it sounds  like it

 8 might have some potential, so we'll let you work with the

 9 Staff until later in year, to see if you can prov ide, you

10 know, more details of where you would go."  And, if the

11 Commission finds it acceptable, at that time you would

12 authorize the build.  

13 I mean, if I could have come here,

14 wrapped up an engineering package, you know, I wo uld have

15 been here saying "Here's what we want to do.  You  know,

16 would you approve it."  But we can't do that.

17 BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: 

18 Q. Mr. Freeman, you had said that you thought the final

19 scope of the plan might be able to be filed late in the

20 third quarter or the beginning of the fourth quar ter of

21 this year, is that right?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. And, would that include actual locations, that the plan

24 would be to extend out a certain area or go into a town
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 1 that isn't currently covered?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. How much more, the kind of plan that you're env isioning

 4 at that phase, would be -- what more would have t o be

 5 done at that point to get to a construction level  plan?

 6 How far down the process are you at that phase?

 7 A. I would say that would be the planning would ha ve

 8 provided their -- they would have done their init ial

 9 analysis, and engineering would have a chance to do a

10 high-level review of the jobs, so we don't have t oo

11 many surprises that would be encountered when we

12 actually get into the detailed engineering drawin gs to

13 hand over to construction.  So, that's sort of th e

14 level that I was looking at.

15 From a "what else would be required?"

16 We'd actually have to go out and actually enginee r, and

17 provide all the necessary work for us -- for

18 construction, so they could build the job.

19 Q. How long would that likely take?  

20 A. That would take another three months.

21 Q. And, then, at that point, does it move into the

22 construction phase?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. I wanted to ask about the inclusion in the plan  that
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 1 says, if FairPoint can meet its 95 percent -- und er the

 2 existing 95 percent requirement, if it can get to  the

 3 point of 92 percent by December 31st, then it has

 4 another full year to get to 95 percent.  But, if it

 5 isn't capable of getting there by the end of Dece mber

 6 of this year, then it doesn't have another year t o get

 7 to the full 95 percent, it only has three months to get

 8 to the 95 percent.  That seems illogical to me.  "If

 9 you're ahead of the time, you get more time; if y ou're

10 falling behind, you get less time."  So, can you help

11 me with the logic of that proposal?

12 A. The logic is, so, if this -- if an extension is

13 granted, to spread out the build for next year, i t's

14 not that we're not going to -- the rationale is t hat we

15 will not stop work that is ongoing this year.  We

16 wouldn't wait until next year to build everything .  We

17 would actually continue on our current plan, buil ding

18 this year, and meeting some minimum thresholds fo r

19 year-end 2012, that would then allow us to roll t his

20 plan into sort of the second half of the 95 perce nt

21 plan, that originally had a date of March 31st, 2 013,

22 and we could extend it for the year-end, so we ca n

23 build that plan more efficiently.  Making sure th at

24 we're focusing our workforce in areas that may or  may
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 1 not be 95 percent plan related, but also $2.8 mil lion

 2 plan related.  

 3 Doesn't look like I've explained it very

 4 well.

 5 Q. I'm pondering.

 6 A. No.

 7 Q. I'm trying.

 8 A. Let me see if I can -- let me take one more sta b at it.

 9 MR. McHUGH:  I can provide more details

10 in the confidential setting on some other project s, that

11 might help with some context.

12 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  I mean, I think what

13 I heard you say is that, if you complete the 92 p ercent by

14 the end of this year, then the remaining 3 percen t of that

15 95 percent build-out will be combined into one la rger

16 project, if the 2.8 million is approved, and that  planning

17 would be done as a package deal?

18 WITNESS FREEMAN:  Correct.

19 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  That's what I

20 thought.  Thanks.

21 BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: 

22 Q. The plan also says that these penalty amounts c ould be

23 put into a restricted fund and would be available  for

24 both capital expenditures and operating expenses.   What
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 1 protections are there, would there be to be certa in

 2 that it doesn't all go to operating expenses for

 3 existing business of the Company, even existing

 4 broadband business of the Company, for example, a ll of

 5 the maintenance and driving and work that is invo lved

 6 in maintaining a broadband system?  Is there any risk

 7 that those funds might be eaten up with legitimat e

 8 operating expenses, and it's gone, and there's ne ver

 9 been any expansion beyond the 95 percent?

10 A. Well, from what Pat had said before, I believe we would

11 have to work with the Staff before any plan is

12 finalized, to ensure that everyone is comfortable  of

13 what the plan is.  What sites are included, what' s the

14 expectation, what are the estimated costs, in ord er for

15 the Commission to feel comfortable that the funds  were

16 used appropriately.

17 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

18 MR. McHUGH:  Can't we track that by job,

19 Mr. Freeman?

20 WITNESS FREEMAN:  You can track it by

21 job, by expenditure type.  You can track it any n umber of

22 ways.

23 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Mr.

24 McHugh, is there any, I guess you'd call it "redi rect",
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 1 although this isn't quite as formal as we often d o, for

 2 Mr. Freeman?

 3 MR. McHUGH:  No, ma'am.

 4 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  And,

 5 Staff, anything that was raised you wanted to add ress,

 6 while we're still on the public session?

 7 MR. FOSSUM:  Not in the -- no, not in

 8 the public session.

 9 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Then,

10 why don't we think about moving into more restric ted.

11 I've looked at the Motion for Confidential Treatm ent.

12 And, does Staff have any view as to whether this is

13 appropriate for confidential treatment?

14 MR. FOSSUM:  Well, quite honestly, I

15 don't know that I could even answer that.  I mean , and

16 just the motion states that "FairPoint anticipate s during

17 [the] hearing, the Commission may request informa tion".

18 We don't know what the information is yet.  So, y ou know,

19 we have the Company's representations at this poi nt, but

20 representations on information that nobody has ye t seen or

21 heard.  So, I don't know that I can answer that q uestion

22 at this time.  You know, I have no reason to doub t the

23 Company at the moment.  But, and, again, we haven 't heard

24 anything and we haven't seen anything.
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 1 MR. McHUGH:  It's perhaps not a perfect

 2 remedy, but, certainly, one I think we've -- I th ink we

 3 worked on it before here, I don't want to get my states

 4 confused.  But I know I've done it in other state s, where,

 5 you know, at this point I think the public would have to

 6 leave, the phone would have to be shut off.  But,  to the

 7 extent there was public information or public tes timony

 8 provided, you know, we can work with the transcri pt

 9 after-the-fact and identify what really should be

10 confidential and what can be released in the tran scripts,

11 then posted on the Commission's website.  And, I don't

12 really -- I think that's workable at least.  That 's what I

13 would offer.

14 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, I think the

15 motion does make a reference to "information may include

16 location of planned facilities deployment, detail s on

17 additional projects that FairPoint may have under way."  I

18 assume it may also include level of investment, l evel of

19 percentage coverage at this point.  Perhaps, I'm hoping,

20 more on any kind of way to estimate a level of in vestment

21 might lead to a certain level of percentage deplo yment or

22 miles covered or something, some sort of ranges.  I think

23 all of those things would be -- would constitute

24 commercial and sensitive information.  
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 1 So, why don't we -- why don't we move

 2 forward into a confidential --

 3 (Chairman and Commissioners conferring.) 

 4 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Oh, yes.  Okay.  All

 5 right.  In a moment, we'll move into a public -- a

 6 non-public session.  But there was another questi on that

 7 Commissioner Scott had that I forgot to turn back  to him.  

 8 MR. McHUGH:  Oh.

 9 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  To you, Mr. McHugh,

10 in the public.

11 CMSR. SCOTT:  Should be quick.  On your

12 March -- Page 2 of your March 1 memo, you discuss  some

13 concerns regarding, in a billing solution, having  time to

14 get an IT solution done to make that happen.  Wha t's the

15 -- and, then, later on in that same memo you talk  perhaps

16 you could bill in May or June.  What's the time l ag

17 between us issuing an order, if we were to say "y ou need

18 to bill", and you being able to do it?

19 MR. McHUGH:  Three to four months.  

20 CMSR. SCOTT:  Three to four months.

21 MR. McHUGH:  Right.

22 CMSR. SCOTT:  So, May or June --

23 MR. McHUGH:  May or -- I've worked with

24 the team.  I mean, like a June bill credit should  work.
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 1 CMSR. SCOTT:  So, May, as you suggested

 2 here, is not on the table anymore, as far as you' re

 3 concerned?

 4 MR. McHUGH:  It would be very difficult,

 5 and other -- other work might have to be bumped.

 6 CMSR. SCOTT:  And, can you -- what does

 7 that mean, "other work would have to be bumped", what type

 8 of --

 9 MR. McHUGH:  So, to get billing changes

10 made as an example, and there are other informati on

11 technology changes that, you know, the Company ha s

12 underway, some for wholesale customers, some for just, you

13 know, system functionality.  But, you know, these  things

14 get processed through what is called the "Change Request

15 Process", and then the team works on developing t he actual

16 change request information, what has to get done to the

17 systems to effectuate whatever the change is.  An d, so,

18 there is a grouping of projects in that regard th at are

19 underway, you know, now.  And, if we were really forced to

20 do a May bill credit, it would -- it would result  in some

21 things that are currently underway getting pushed  out into

22 the future.  So, we only -- we only have a certai n

23 capacity to get every change request through the system

24 that you might want to have.  So, you have to sch edule
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 1 them out, and, you know, and this is not -- well,  it's on

 2 the schedule now, but it wasn't on the schedule b ack then.

 3 So, it would take some time.

 4 CMSR. SCOTT:  So, if we were to issue an

 5 order 1 April, you could meet a June deadline, is  that --

 6 MR. McHUGH:  Yes.

 7 CMSR. SCOTT:  Thank you.

 8 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, Mr. McHugh, you

 9 know from the order the concern raised that, with  Senate

10 Bill 48, there's a potential for a very limited n umber of

11 areas that the Commission would have enforcement

12 authority, and a concern in our order that perhap s a

13 promise to make refunds might not fall within the

14 parameters of the things the Commission could enf orce?

15 MR. McHUGH:  I think, from a timing

16 perspective, I don't think June's going to be an issue.  I

17 mean, there's a 60-day effective period in the bi ll.  And,

18 I don't know when it possibly could get to the Go vernor,

19 and if you assume he signs it.  You know, I just don't

20 know how that would really be much before mid Apr il.  So,

21 you're taking about a mid June, maybe, implementa tion.

22 But I've already, you know, told the team of the concern

23 that the Commission had.  So, you know, I would e xpect

24 that, you know, for some reason it came out earli er, you
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 1 would want the bill credits issued earlier, and w e would

 2 have to deal with it.  But, you know, the bottom line is,

 3 SB 48 or not, if the determination is these credi ts go

 4 back to customers, then that's what we're going t o do.

 5 Period.

 6 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, your view is

 7 that you don't need an amendment to SB 48 to make  that

 8 happen, and that the commitment that you make on the

 9 record on behalf of the Company would guarantee t hat it be

10 repaid, whether it's in June or August or Septemb er?

11 MR. McHUGH:  Correct.

12 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Why

13 don't we then move to a confidential portion of t he

14 transcript.  Turn off the phone listening system.   And, I

15 want to ask, Mr. McHugh, Ms. Miller is here from DRED, do

16 you have a concern with her being present?

17 MR. McHUGH:  I do.  I would ask that she

18 be excused.

19 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Thank

20 you for your attendance today, Ms. Miller.  If yo u want to

21 stay and return, we can find you down the hall.  If you

22 have other work to do, that's all right, too.  

23 MS. MILLER:  Do you have an anticipated

24 amount of time the confidential session will take  place?
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 1 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  You know, I think it

 2 could be 30 minutes, perhaps longer.

 3 MS. MILLER:  Okay.

 4 MR. McHUGH:  Would there be anything

 5 left for public?  I'm just asking that.  

 6 MS. MILLER:  Oh.  Yes.

 7 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Yes, there may not

 8 be a lot left to do.

 9 MR. McHUGH:  That's all I was --  

10 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Yes, we don't -- I

11 don't think we're holding anything back, but you never

12 know.  This isn't the normal hearing to begin wit h.  

13 MS. MILLER:  Okay.  Well, I appreciate

14 your time and have a good day.

15 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  Mr.

16 Fossum, is the -- this is off the record.

17 (This hearing moved into a Confidential 

18 Session.  Pages 65 through 102 of the 

19 hearing transcript is contained under 

20 separate cover designated as 

21 " Confidential & Proprietary".) 

22  

23  

24  
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 1 (Hearing continues on the public 

 2 session.) 

 3 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I think, can we get

 4 off the confidential transcript?  Is there anythi ng else

 5 that needs to be addressed of a confidential natu re?

 6 MR. FOSSUM:  I have one question, I

 7 think that's sort of a mix, confidential and not.   And, if

 8 my notes are up to speed, at the moment, FairPoin t has

 9 agreed to provide I believe it's five things that  the

10 Commission has requested to see.  And, the last o ne, the

11 cost example that Mr. McHugh was just referring t o, the

12 Commission reserved a confidential record request  for

13 that.  Is the Commission reserving record request  space

14 for the others, or are those simply for informati onal

15 purposes and are not -- is it your intention that  they be

16 part of the record?

17 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  And, I

18 -- this has been the strangest proceeding that I know of.

19 And, so, our kind of normal protocols are -- I'm not doing

20 a very good job of keeping track of them, because  it

21 doesn't seem to quite fit with part oral argument  and part

22 witness.  

23 I think that's a good point, to make

24 sure that whatever comes in, we identify clearly what it
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 1 is.  We mark it to be in the record.  And, to the  extent

 2 it requires confidential treatment, we can make t hat

 3 arrangement.  And, so, although I hadn't mentione d that

 4 yet, I think that's a very good suggestion.

 5 I think the five items, why don't you

 6 lay out what you've written down, because I'm not  sure I

 7 have them as orderly in a list as you might have.

 8 MR. FOSSUM:  From what I have written

 9 here, in response to Commissioner Harrington, the re's a

10 request that FairPoint provide a legal analysis f or the

11 authority to transfer funds or to use the funds f or this

12 broadband expansion.

13 The second, again, in response to

14 Commissioner Harrington, was a financial analysis , I don't

15 know that there was a level of detail specified, about the

16 payback on this investment, in term of its overal l

17 profitability over time.

18 The third, in response to Commissioner

19 Scott, I guess a general question about a dollar amount

20 above the $2.8 million that the Company would inv est in

21 this project.

22 A question about -- the fourth is a

23 question on the take rate of broadband in rural a reas, I

24 guess, particularly in Coos County, in this examp le.  
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 1 And, finally, the cost examples that Mr.

 2 McHugh spoke about for equipping remote terminals .  And,

 3 my understanding was that that -- those examples would be

 4 part of the 95 percent that they have already don e some

 5 planning and engineering for, and would also set out the

 6 number of access lines served by that equipment u pgrade.

 7 So, that's what I have.

 8 MR. McHUGH:  That's fairly -- I feel

 9 that's consistent with my notes.

10 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, it looks as

11 though all but the first, which is the sort of le gal

12 analysis or is it even a "fairness" analysis of h ow the

13 funds might be used, that that would not require

14 confidential treatment, but the other four, invol ving

15 financial estimates, take rates, examples of othe r

16 investments, seem fairly to be given confidential

17 treatment.

18 MR. McHUGH:  I would agree with that.

19 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Commissioner Scott.

20 CMSR. SCOTT:  Yes.  And, maybe it's not

21 on the list for a reason, but the other thing we talked

22 about, Mr. McHugh, is some kind of language that would

23 make this binding, you know, moving forward, if w e were to

24 go with the proposal.  Now, maybe that was in you r mind,
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 1 and maybe it's the right case, that that also wou ld be

 2 worked out with Staff, much like the final detail s.  But

 3 that was an issue I was looking to delve further into.  

 4 MR. McHUGH:  I'll try and address that

 5 in the -- sort of the legal analysis requested by

 6 Commissioner Harrington.

 7 CMSR. SCOTT:  Thank you.

 8 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I think, we haven't

 9 given Staff an opportunity just to speak to what it thinks

10 is the appropriate treatment here.  We've been di scussing

11 the Company's proposal.  I assume -- well, I shou ldn't

12 assume.  Does Staff intend to call a witness?

13 MR. FOSSUM:  No.  Staff does not intend

14 to call a witness.

15 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Does Staff have an

16 intention to make an sort of offer of proof or wa it for

17 closings at the end of the proceeding?

18 MR. FOSSUM:  I believe, at this point,

19 it was our intent to -- excuse me, our intention simply to

20 wait for closings.

21 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Then, is

22 there anything else that the Company had intended  to bring

23 forward today?

24 MR. McHUGH:  No, ma'am.
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 1 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Any other questions

 2 Staff has to the Company?

 3 MR. FOSSUM:  Not at present, no.  

 4 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Questions

 5 Commissioners have to the Company?  Any questions  that the

 6 Commissioners have to the Staff?  I mean, I'll as k sort of

 7 the corollary of some of what I was asking the Co mpany.

 8 Are you aware of responses to any of the things, such as

 9 is there a standard take rate one can expect in a  rural

10 community for new broadband deployment in an area  that's

11 not now served?

12 MR. FOSSUM:  I'll allow those who would

13 be more apt to know this information to respond t o it.  On

14 behalf of myself, I know that that is, my thought , is that

15 is generally marketing type information that Staf f

16 generally would not collect.  But I would defer t o more

17 expert members of Staff on that.

18 MR. LADAM:  I guess I would just observe

19 that one factor in take rate is going to be wheth er

20 there's a competitive offering.  So, if you can g et

21 broadband from the cable company, you would expec t a lower

22 take rate from the telephone company offering, an d vice

23 versa.  And, therefore, it's often the case that the take

24 rate in a rural area, with less competition, is h igher
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 1 than in a metro area, I think.

 2 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, I think Mr.

 3 McHugh had said something about "a rural area mig ht be

 4 more in the 40 percent range than the 30 percent range." 

 5 That's for that very reason?

 6 MR. McHUGH:  Right.  I would agree with

 7 that.  That's fair.

 8 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  How about the

 9 question of any way to estimate a million dollars  of

10 investment should get you somewhere in the range of

11 something, in terms of what results from that inv estment

12 for broadband?  

13 MS. BAILEY:  I think the Company could

14 produce a range.  This would have to be probably -- I'd

15 have to go on the confidential record for what I' m about

16 to say, okay?  When we were working on the bankru ptcy

17 case, they had an exhibit that showed the number of remote

18 terminals that required a fiber build.  And, then , they

19 broke it out by customers served.  So, if it were  a remote

20 terminal that served 25 customers, and it needed fiber to

21 get from the central office to the remote termina l, the

22 range was "X" millions.  And, then, you could eve n figure

23 out how many dollars per customer it cost.  And, then, it

24 went down from there.  So, then, there were remot e
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 1 terminals that served 50 customers, with or witho ut fiber.

 2 And, the breaking point, from my recollection was , if it

 3 needed fiber, it was really expensive.  And, if i t didn't

 4 need fiber, it wasn't that expensive, but the cos t per

 5 customer depended on how many customers were serv ed by the

 6 remote terminal.  I don't know, is any of that

 7 confidential?

 8 MR. McHUGH:  I think the way you laid it

 9 out, no.  Not that I can see.  

10 MS. BAILEY:  Okay.

11 MR. McHUGH:  I don't recall the exhibit.

12 I would assume, based on your description, the ex hibit

13 would have -- the document would have been confid ential?

14 MS. BAILEY:  Yes.  It was confidential.

15 And, it was something that was presented, it wasn 't an

16 exhibit in the case.  

17 MR. McHUGH:  Oh.  Okay.  I'm sorry.

18 MS. BAILEY:  It was, you know, it was a

19 conversation that we had, and you were showing me , --

20 MR. McHUGH:  Okay.  That's --

21 MS. BAILEY:  -- you know, how many lines

22 you needed to get to with remote terminals that s erve this

23 many customers.  And, we haven't had an update on  that, so

24 that would be really interesting to know.  But it  would
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 1 probably take a lot of work to put that together.

 2 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  I guess,

 3 then, if there's nothing else, does Staff have a position

 4 on the proposal the Company has made on the best use of

 5 the penalty funds?

 6 MR. FOSSUM:  Our position is -- well,

 7 while as a general matter, I think that we agree that

 8 providing services to those who would otherwise n ot have

 9 services is sort of an inherently good thing.  It 's not

10 clear that this particular plan meets the concern s that

11 the Commission had set out.  I mean, at the momen t, and

12 subject, of course, to whatever else the Company may

13 provide, there are questions about the scope of t he

14 expansion to be undertaken, the number of custome rs that

15 would ultimately be served, and the cost to serve  them,

16 and whether -- well, not "whether", but I guess t he degree

17 to which that amount would be incremental to the

18 95 percent that's already obligated.  

19 And, as the Commissioners have also

20 asked about, too, there are questions about the o ngoing

21 enforceability or the enforcement authority of th e

22 Commission.  The plan, the time frame for the pla n runs

23 through the end of 2013, another year and a half or more

24 from now.  And, it's not clear at present what en forcement
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 1 authority the Commission would have in a year or a year

 2 and a half, should any of the obligations that ar ise from

 3 this plan be permitted to go into effect.

 4 To the extent the Commission ultimately

 5 determines that the money should be spent on bill  credits,

 6 rather than the plan itself, Staff doesn't object  to

 7 bringing the credits down to one or two months fr om the

 8 original recommendation that Staff had made.

 9 And, I guess, to the extent that's a

10 position, that would be Staff's point of view.  T hank you.

11 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  Mr.

12 McHugh.

13 MR. McHUGH:  I don't have a closing

14 argument, per se.  I didn't look at this proceeding as

15 something of that nature.  In light of the fact, and it

16 might have been different, but, in the light of t he fact

17 that, from what I can tell, and what we have here  today,

18 there's no opposition to the plan from competitor s or

19 other parties to the original merger docket, DT 0 7-011.

20 So, I think that's one of the reasons for the Com mission

21 why it sort of came out this way.  Because I didn 't see

22 the need to formally marshalize like seven or eig ht

23 witnesses to explain every little piece and compo nent, and

24 why I've been trying to explain it to you as, you  know,
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 1 the State President in New Hampshire and Assistan t General

 2 Counsel for the Company.

 3 In light of -- so, obviously, I'm going

 4 to need some time to work on the requests.  I can 't tell

 5 you right now off the top of my head when I think  I can

 6 get these.  So, that some of them, you know, will  be I

 7 think fairly quick, right, I can call up our mark eting

 8 folks and they can probably tell me the take rate .  And,

 9 Mr. Freeman has got to work on some of the commun ity

10 estimates we talked about.  I don't know how long , for

11 example, the financial impact analysis will take.   And,

12 I'm just going to need some time to set aside for  myself

13 to work on sort of the legal basis type exhibit.  And, I'm

14 out-of-state all of next week.  So, that's -- tha t's not

15 an excuse, I mean, I'm going to be trying to work  on it,

16 but I'm in meetings out-of-state for most of next  week.

17 I guess then, so, the question is, "so

18 what do you want us to do, Mr. McHugh?"  And, I g uess what

19 I would ask for right now is that you do amend th e

20 February 6 order to allow FairPoint to provide th e bill

21 credits at some point in June of this year, if it 's

22 ultimately required, because (a) the Commission d oes not

23 want to move forward with use of the money for a broadband

24 program, or (b) if I cannot satisfy any concerns with
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 1 respect to enforceability and/or whether they rel ate or

 2 don't relate to Senate Bill 48.  But, if I can't satisfy

 3 those concerns, then, and you want to make sure t hat the

 4 rebates go out on a specific date, it would be, I  would

 5 say, in June.  And, then, -- then, we leave it at  that,

 6 almost as like an interim order.  And, then, the "interim"

 7 would clearly mean to me "more to follow", if you  get past

 8 the enforceability issues, then I would submit th at still

 9 you would want, I would think, more time to evalu ate just

10 what can we do with 3 -- or, I keep saying "3", b ut it's

11 the $2.8 million.  So that, if the Commission fee ls it's

12 not of a benefit to the state to use the money to  serve

13 maybe a very, very limited number of customers, t hen it

14 would go back to bill credits.  Or, the alternati ve is

15 that the Commission does feel that it would be of  a

16 benefit to the state to use the money to build br oadband

17 where FairPoint otherwise would not build, then w e, you

18 know, we proceed in that course.  And, that will just take

19 some time into later this year.  I personally don 't see

20 any other way how we can go about it, other than into sort

21 of phases or steps, for lack of a better descript ion.  

22 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, are you saying,

23 if we were to conclude "This just isn't a good id ea, let's

24 just move to bill credits," to have an order that  says "do

     {DT 07-011} [REDACTED - for PUBLIC use] {03-19 -12}



   114

 1 that no later than June 2012"?

 2 MR. McHUGH:  Right.  Yes.

 3 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, if we were to

 4 say "We're still thinking about it, and we want t o see

 5 more information.  Then, don't do anything with b ill

 6 credits, and provide more information, and await a further

 7 order of the Commission"?

 8 MR. McHUGH:  Correct.

 9 MR. FOSSUM:  If I may interject for a

10 moment, I think that, I'm not sure what the Commi ssion

11 wants to do with this exactly, but the Commission  may have

12 to issue another order in any event.  The Februar y order

13 essentially was self-executing, and stated that " if the

14 plan, as proposed, wasn't approved, then bill cre dits

15 would begin on April 1st."  So, in any event, the

16 Commission is going to have to issue some kind of  order by

17 April 1st, if it wants to do anything other than start

18 applying bill credits by April 1st, potentially.

19 Somewhat related to that, I don't know,

20 Mr. McHugh, with respect to his schedule and what  he may

21 do, I don't know how long it would take FairPoint  to put

22 together the information that the Commission has

23 requested.  But it would seem to make sense to pu t some

24 sort of date certain on the record, so that we al l know
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 1 what to expect and by when.

 2 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I agree.  I think

 3 that -- I had been hoping two weeks would be suff icient

 4 for those five record requests.

 5 MR. McHUGH:  I was just going to

 6 suggest, why don't we wait for two weeks.  And, i f, for

 7 some reason, I need more time, I'll simply commun icate it

 8 to the Staff and the Commission and ask for more time.

 9 And, understanding that, whatever I have, I will provide

10 as well by that deadline.

11 And, in terms of, and maybe I'm under

12 thinking it, but, in terms of the April 1 deadlin e, would

13 it be possible to issue, from Ms. Howland, a secr etarial

14 letter that says "temporarily, pending further Co mmission

15 review, the April 1st deadline in the order of Fe bruary 6

16 is temporarily suspended"?  And, I don't know, I' m

17 thinking of something relatively easy that would work is

18 all I'm trying to express.

19 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I understand.  You

20 need to know whether you're gearing up for doing bill

21 credits or not?

22 MR. McHUGH:  Correct.

23 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  We'll

24 take all of that into consideration.  
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 1 Are there any other questions that --

 2 Commissioner Scott.

 3 CMSR. SCOTT:  Just one, sorry to keep

 4 continuing this.  Assuming, again, the plan, rath er than

 5 the billing, we've been kind of talking about a g eneric

 6 number of people, number of places served, that t ype of

 7 thing.  I'm wondering, when we look at public ben efit, the

 8 schools, libraries, public places like that, and perhaps

 9 businesses, I'm wondering, does it make sense to try to,

10 if there were limited resources, there are pocket s where

11 we could get those type of facilities, is that no t the --

12 I guess it's not a question, I guess.  Do you hav e the

13 capability to look at that type of thing in a pla n?  That

14 would be the question I'd ask.

15 MR. McHUGH:  See, I think -- well, maybe

16 I'll let Steve answer, but what I was thinking is , it

17 would depend on, in the end, what a plan would lo ok like,

18 because we're going to equip the RTs, which are t hen going

19 to serve whatever customers happen to be, you kno w,

20 associated with those RTs.  So, if the goal is th at, you

21 know, "Pat and Steve, go pick a bunch of RTs that  run by

22 schools that would otherwise be unserved", I mean , as

23 something to look at, would something like that w ork?

24 MR. FREEMAN:  We can look at it.  
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 1 MR. McHUGH:  I mean, we can look at it.

 2 I don't know that I can get you that in two weeks , though,

 3 Commissioner Scott.  That's --

 4 CMSR. SCOTT:  No.  I was thinking as a

 5 criteria, maybe.

 6 MR. McHUGH:  Yes.  Okay.

 7 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, anything else?

 8 Commissioner Harrington, you had another question .  

 9 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Yes.  Just to clarify

10 something I brought up before, on the -- if you w ould be

11 -- I'm assuming the idea of this is to go where t here

12 isn't any broadband now.  And, I asked you if you  would be

13 competing with existing broadband suppliers, with  the

14 exception of satellite, and you said "it simply w asn't

15 addressed."  So, maybe that's another thing that you can

16 come back with an answer for.  Do you anticipate that

17 there would be -- you'd be building in areas wher e you

18 would be in direct competition with somebody else , or are

19 you saying except for satellite?

20 MR. McHUGH:  And, we will, I'll talk to

21 Steve and other members of the team.  But I'm jus t trying

22 to think how I can explain it to you, other than,  you

23 know, the competitors don't tell us where they ar e.  So,

24 we're not -- I mean, you might know, when you go to a
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 1 town, that Comcast, you know, provides its voice and

 2 television service.  So, --

 3 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Aren't they

 4 franchised by the town?

 5 MR. McHUGH:  But that doesn't mean they

 6 provide service to everybody or every area in the  town.  I

 7 mean, yes, I think that each town has a franchise

 8 requirement, at least that I know of.  But that d oesn't

 9 mean they're actually going to provide service to  the

10 entire town.

11 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Well, maybe to the

12 extent possible, I guess is what I'm looking at h ere, is

13 your intent to minimize the amount of bringing in to areas

14 where there's presently broadband, and to concent rate on

15 the areas where there isn't any?

16 MR. McHUGH:  Okay.  Fair enough.  

17 CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.

18 CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  If

19 nothing further, this is an odd one, in terms of format.

20 But I appreciate everyone's willingness to be a l ittle bit

21 unusual in how we got the information out, and I found it

22 very helpful.  So, thank you.  

23 Unless there's anything further, we'll

24 take all of this under advisement.
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 1 MR. McHUGH:  Thank you for your time

 2 today.

 3 (Whereupon the hearing ended at 3:44 

 4 p.m.) 
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